
CITY OF HILLSBORO 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Agenda – Regular Meeting - Tuesday, March 21, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. 
Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81338906250 
 

A.  Meeting Called to Order 

B. Approval of Consent Agenda 

1. Vouchers totaling $497,922.36 

2. Minutes for the 03-02-2023 Special Meeting, 03-07-2023 Meeting, and 03-15-2023 

Special Meeting 

3. Water Plant Chemical Purchase of $11,898.00 

4. Liquor License for Vondy’s Liquor at 500 Western Heights Drive 

C. Public Comment 

D. Business Items 

1. Consideration of Ordinance 1365 approving a forgivable loan agreement with KDHE 

for KPWSLF totaling $1.1 million  

2. Consideration of an agreement with EBH for design and administration of the KDHE 

KPWSLF project 

3. Consideration of 2023-2024 Property and Liability Insurance Renewal 

4. Consideration of sponsorship of the 126 N Main application to the HEAL grant 

E. Discussion Item 

1. Consideration of Dog Confinement Code Language 

2. Policy on discounted golf memberships 

F. City Administrator’s Report 

G. Public Comments 

H. Council Comments 

I. Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81338906250












































Hillsboro, Kansas 
March 2, 2023 
 
1. The City Council met in special session via Zoom and in person on Thursday, March 2, 2023 at 11:50am with 
Mayor Lou Thurston and Council members Blake Beye, Brent Driggers, David Loewen and Byron McCarty 
participating.  
 
Members Absent:  None.  
 
2. Others Participating:  Matt Stiles, City Administrator; Danielle Bartel, City Clerk; Darrel Knoll, HHS 
Government Teacher; Hillsboro High School students including Katie Rempel, Karley Loewen, Keeley Brewer, 
Deon Weeks, Joshua Diener, Josh Siebert, Christopher Bibens and Wenxi Funk. 
 
3. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Lou Thurston called the meeting to order at 11:50am. 
 
4. PRESENTATION OF SENIOR GOVERNMENT COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS:  Mayor Lou Thurston 
introduced Darrel Knoll.  
 
TRANSPORTATION SAFETY AT JEFFERSON & GRAND:  Katie Rempel, Karley Loewen and Keely Brewer shared of 
concerns at the intersection of Jefferson and Grand. To improve safety, the group recommended a cross walk 
and street sign labeled ‘stop for pedestrians.’ They also proposed eliminating one parking spot on Grand Avenue 
closest to the intersection and adding parallel parking lines along the west side of Jefferson Street on the block 
south of Grand. Anticipated cost for materials and communication would be approximately $3,020. Christopher 
Bibens inquired if eliminating a parking space could be a traffic solution near the high school parking lot alley on 
Grand Avenue near Adams Street. The group agreed that could be a good solution. Council thanked the group 
for their presentation and agreed their recommendations would be feasible.  
 
PEDESTRIAN SAFETY AT TABOR COLLEGE CROSS WALKS:  Deon Weeks, Joshua Diener, Josh Siebert, Christopher 
Bibens and Wenxi Funk described pedestrian concerns on D Street at the Tabor College crosswalks. They 
recommended rectangular rapid flashing beacons with a ‘press to cross’ button be added on each side of the 
crosswalk. Information was shared about potential funding of $50,000 through the US Department of 
Transportation noting a traffic study would be needed prior to applying for funding. The cost for both crosswalks 
would be approximately $50,000. Council thanked the group for their presentation.  
 
Darrel Knoll expressed his appreciation for Administrator Stiles and Mayor Thurston in their work to set up the 
student presentations with the Council. He also shared his thanks to the City Council for investing their time in 
the students to get kids involved in local government.  
 
Council members agreed there is merit in pursuing both recommendations and that the Jefferson & Grand 
intersection could be addressed by City staff.  
 
5. ADJOURNMENT:  Council meeting adjourned at 12:16pm. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  _______________________________________  
   LOUIS THURSTON, MAYOR 
 
 
 ______________________________________  
  DANIELLE BARTEL, CITY CLERK  



Hillsboro, Kansas 
March 7, 2023 
 
1. The City Council met in regular session via Zoom and in person on Tuesday, March 7, 2023 at 6:30pm with 
Mayor Lou Thurston and Council members Blake Beye, David Loewen and Byron McCarty participating.  
 
Members Absent:  Brent Driggers.  
 
2. Others Participating:  Andrew Kovar, City Attorney; Matt Stiles, City Administrator; Danielle Bartel, City Clerk; 
Avery Unruh, Golf Course Superintendent; Crystal Hinnen, Ranson Financial; Erin Hein & Tristen Cope, Hillsboro 
Community Childcare Center; Adam Kleiber & Bob Williamson, Ag Power; Kevin Suderman, 2S Outdoor Power.  
 
3. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Lou Thurston called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

MINUTES dated February 21, 2023.  

VOUCHERS in the amount of $48,481.10. 

Council member McCarty motioned to approve the consent agenda. Council member Loewen seconded. Motion 
carried.  
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING FOR CDBG APPLICATION FOR CHILDCARE CENTER:  Mayor Thurston opened the public 
hearing for the Community Development Block Grant application for the Hillsboro Community Childcare Center 
(H4C). Crystal Hinnen of Ranson Financial shared details regarding the project and noted the grant request is for 
$600,000. There were no public comments. The public hearing was closed.  
 
RESOLUTION 2023-03: AUTHORIZING APPLICATION TO CDBG:  Administrator Stiles shared the purpose of the 
grant and noted this is not a city project. 
 
Council member Loewen motioned to adopt Resolution 2023-03 and authorize the mayor and clerk to sign. 
Council member McCarty seconded. Motion carried 3-0. 
 
RESOLUTION 2023-04: ASSURING CONTINUED OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE:  Administrator Stiles shared 
that the purpose of this resolution is to assure the operation of the facility will continue past the grant phase. 
Stiles also shared of funding that H4C recently received from other foundations.  
 
Council member Beye motioned to adopt Resolution 2023-04 and authorize the mayor and clerk to sign. Council 
member Loewen seconded. Motion carried 3-0. 
 
7. ANNUAL DEPARTMENT HEAD PRESENTATION: AVERY UNRUH, GOLF COURSE SUPERINTENDENT:  Avery 
Unruh shared of increased sales in 2022 of greens fees, rentals and driving range sales. He highlighted several 
goals and shared of upcoming and ongoing projects. Council thanked Avery for his report and his good work at 
the golf course. 
 
8. BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
COST SHARE GRANT APPLICATION WITH KDOT:  Administrator Stiles noted the City has applied for a KDOT Cost 
Share program on Adams Street from B Street to First Street multiple times. Staff has requested feedback from 
KDOT regarding prior applications, therefore this application has been revised to highlight safety along this 
section of Adams Street. The local cost share would be 25% of the project which is anticipated to be $195,225.  
 
Council member McCarty motioned to approve the Cost Share Grant application with KDOT and authorize the 
City Administrator to submit the grant application on behalf of the City. Council member Loewen seconded. 
Motion carried 3-0.  
 
CONSIDERATION OF MOWING BIDS FOR 2023 SEASON:  Administrator Stiles shared the results of all bids 
submitted for areas 1-4 and noted the museum, fairgrounds and airport will be mowed by city staff. He shared 
the financial impact will be $10,290 and recommended awarding the low bids for Ryan Hefley on Areas 1-3 and 
Plenert Mowing on Area 4. 
 
Council member Beye motioned to approve awarding Ryan Hefley the mowing contract for Areas 1, 2 and 3 and 
Plenert Mowing for Area 4 and the Schaeffler House. Council member McCarty seconded. Motion carried 3-0.   
 



CONSIDERATION OF MOWER PURCHASE FOR THE SEWER DEPARTMENT:  Mayor Thurston invited the two local 
vendors that were present to speak.  
 
Kevin Suderman of 2S Outdoor Power shared of frustrations with the bidding process and with the 
recommendation to purchase from a non-local vendor despite having two local vendors. Suderman requested 
transparency in the bid process and for bid requests to be written.  
 
Adam Kleiber of Ag Power agreed with Suderman and would like to have received a written bid request. Kleiber 
shared of the differences between the quotes provided by Ag Power and those of Hale’s Sales & Service, noting 
the quotes were not comparing the same products.   
 
Administrator Stiles addressed issues raised including changes needed to solidify the bidding process, including a 
written bid request, timing, and adhering to a structured bid process. He sincerely apologized for this and 
suggested starting over with a new written bid request for this purchase. 
 
Council discussion regarding the bids received and the issues addressed. Council consensus to provide a written 
bid request to both local vendors and allow each to resubmit. Suderman and Kleiber offered to assist in 
developing specifications for the mower bid to be provided to Administrator Stiles. Council discussed holding a 
special meeting once bids have been received. Mayor Thurston thanked both vendors for attending the meeting.  
 
CONSIDERATION OF PURCHASE OF 2014 TRASH TRUCK:  Administrator Stiles shared of staff’s recommendation 
to purchase a 2014 trash truck at a cost of $159,500 delivered. He also noted this would be part of a lease 
purchase agreement.  
 
Council member McCarty motioned to approve the purchase of the 2014 Autocar Trash Truck for $159,500 from 
Chastang Autocar using a lease-purchase agreement. Council member Beye seconded. Motion carried.  
 
CONSIDERATION OF PURCHASE OF VENTRAC TRACTOR & DECK & GOLF COURSE SPRAYER:  Administrator Stiles 
shared the request for a Ventrac 4520Z mower with a Ventrac contour deck, and a Multi Pro 1750 sprayer for 
the golf course. 
 
Council member Beye motioned to approve the purchase from Professional Turf Products, LP for the Ventrac 
4520Z tractor, 84” Contour Deck, and Multi Pro 1750 sprayer using a lease-purchase agreement. Council 
member McCarty seconded. Motion carried.  
 
HILLSBORO FORD INVOICES:  Administrator Stiles reviewed invoices from Hillsboro Ford totaling $2088.13. 
Council member McCarty motioned to approve payment. Council member Loewen seconded. Council member 
Beye abstained. Mayor Thurston voted in favor. Motion carried.  
 
9. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:  Administrator Stiles reported on the following: 

• Sewer Repairs 
• Plats 
• Marion Reservoir  
• Brush Truck 
• Mirror Meeting 
• Open Positions 

  
10. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None. 
 
11. COUNCIL COMMENTS:  Council member McCarty suggested considering a golf membership discount for city 
employees and noted it could increase the number of members and would be similar to the benefit with Infinity 
Fitness.  
 
13. ADJOURNMENT:  Council meeting adjourned at 7:56pm. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  _______________________________________  
   LOUIS THURSTON, MAYOR 
 
 
 ______________________________________  
  DANIELLE BARTEL, CITY CLERK  



Hillsboro, Kansas 
March 15, 2023 
 
1. The City Council met in special session via Zoom and in person on Wednesday, March 15, 2023 at 12:00pm 
with Mayor Lou Thurston and Council members Blake Beye, David Loewen and Byron McCarty participating.  
 
Members Absent:  Brent Driggers. 
 
2. Others Participating:  Matt Stiles, City Administrator; Danielle Bartel, City Clerk. 
 
3. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Lou Thurston called the meeting to order at 12:00pm. 
 
4. CONSIDERATION OF SEWER MOWING BIDS:  Administrator Stiles reviewed the rebidding process following 
the last council meeting and requirements for the sewer mower. He noted that only one mower of the several 
bids received from 2S Outdoor Power and Ag Power met the specifications. Council discussion regarding cost, 
availability and service needs.   
 
Council member Beye motioned to approve the bid from 2S Outdoor Power for the Grasshopper 440 at a cost of 
$14,811.95. Council member McCarty seconded. Motion carried.  
 
5. COUNCIL COMMENTS:  Council member Beye was appreciative of the rebidding process.  
 
6. ADJOURNMENT:  Council meeting adjourned at 12:06pm. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  _______________________________________  
   LOUIS THURSTON, MAYOR 
 
 
 ______________________________________  
  DANIELLE BARTEL, CITY CLERK  







3-02-2023
x







Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 3/21/2023 

Re: KDHE Loan Agreement and EBH Agreement 

Background: There are two items related to the forgivable $1.1 million KDHE loan to address our 
problems with iron and manganese in the Marion Reservoir. First is the proposed agreement with 
KDHE for the loan itself. The total amount is $1.1 million. Eligible costs include the engineer, design 
and administration of the loan. This loan is eligible for 100% loan forgiveness as part of the 
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act federal funding because the iron and manganese are 
considering emerging contaminants.  

Ordinance 1365 authorizes the city to execute the proposed agreement, dedicate a repayment 
revenue for the project, and authorize the execution of any needed documents. TWG is working on a 
revised ordinance and legal opinion on the KDHE’s proposed agreement. Those documents should 
be available on Monday, March 20 for review. The agreement provided by KDHE is enclosed is for 
reference but will not be the final version.  

Connected to the KDHE Loan is the EBH Agreement. In the proposed agreement EBH will handle the 
design and administration of the KDHE Loan through the completion of the project. The lump sum 
cost in the contract is $203,100 with the possibility of additional charges according to the set fee 
schedule in the agreement. All those costs are eligible to be paid through the loan proceeds.  

In anticipation of starting the pilot project to prove the proposed technology is effective, the city has 
submitted a request to KDHE to allow for sole-source purchase of the chlorine dioxide generator 
immediately. That equipment is $58,750 and is needed to be installed before summer to get an 
effective measurement of its ability. That pilot data will be used by KDHE to determine if the treatment 
can be used safely in our water treatment process. That request with KDHE is pending approval and 
would be paid out of proceeds from the loan.  

Financial Impact: The full amount of the $1.1 million loan will be forgiven. However, the city will still 
be responsible for the service fee and any accrued interest. According to the estimated amortization 
schedule, that amount is anticipated to be $2,016.66.  

Recommendation: Staff recommends moving forward with both Ordinance 1365 and the proposed 
agreement with EBH. Separate actions would be needed. The first would be to adopt Ordinance 1365 
and authorizing the Mayor to sign. Assuming that ordinance is adopted, then the Council would need 
to approve the proposed agreement with EBH for the engineering services as presented.  



 
TWG REF: 1011252 
Authorizing Ordinance 
 

(Published in The Hillsboro Star-Journal on _______________) 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1365 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LOAN 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS AND 
THE STATE OF KANSAS, ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE KANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF OBTAINING A LOAN FROM THE KANSAS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY 
LOAN FUND FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING A PUBLIC WATER 
SUPPLY PROJECT; ESTABLISHING A DEDICATED SOURCE OF 
REVENUE FOR REPAYMENT OF SUCH LOAN; AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; 
AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE LOAN AGREEMENT. 

WHEREAS, the Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 [PL 104-182] to the Safe 
Drinking Water Act (the "Federal Act") established the Drinking Water Loan Fund to assist public 
water supply systems in financing the costs of infrastructure needed to achieve or maintain 
compliance with the Federal Act and to protect the public health and authorized the Environmental 
Protection Agency (the "EPA") to administer a revolving loan program operated by the individual 
states; and 

 
WHEREAS, to fund the state revolving fund program, the EPA will make annual 

capitalization grants to the states, on the condition that each state provide a state match for such 
state's revolving fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, by passage of the Kansas Public Water Supply Loan Act, K.S.A. 65-163d et 

seq., as amended (the "Loan Act"), the State of Kansas (the "State") has established the Kansas 
Public Water Supply Loan Fund (the "Revolving Fund") for purposes of the Federal Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, under the Loan Act, the Secretary of the Kansas Department of Health and 

Environment ("KDHE") is given the responsibility for administration and management of the 
Revolving Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Kansas Development Finance Authority (the "Authority") and KDHE have 

entered into a Master Indenture (the "Master Indenture") pursuant to which KDHE agrees to enter 
into Loan Agreements with Municipalities for public water supply projects (the "Projects") and to 
pledge the Loan Repayments (as defined in the Master Indenture) received pursuant to such Loan 
Agreements to the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized under K.S.A. 74-8905(a) and the Loan Act to issue 

revenue bonds (the "Bonds") for the purpose of providing funds to implement the State's 
requirements under the Federal Act and to loan the same, together with available funds from the 
EPA capitalization grants, to Municipalities within the State for the payment of Project Costs (as 



TWG REF: 1011252 
Authorizing Ordinance 

said terms are defined in the Loan Act); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hillsboro, Kansas (the "Municipality") is a municipality as said 
term is defined in the Loan Act which operates a water system (the "System"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the System is a Public Water Supply System, as said term is defined in the 

Loan Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Municipality has, pursuant to the Loan Act, submitted an Application to 

KDHE to obtain a loan from the Revolving Fund to finance the costs of improvements to its System 
consisting of the following: 
 

The water treatment plant improvements include recommissioning and updating the 
potassium permanganate feed systems, adding a chlorine dioxide feed system, pipe 

and valve modifications, additional of pipeline mixer and contact loops. 
 
(the "Project"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Municipality has taken all steps necessary and has complied with the 

provisions of the Loan Act and the provisions of K.A.R. 28-15-50 through 28-15-65 (the 
"Regulations") applicable thereto necessary to qualify for the loan; and 

 
WHEREAS, KDHE has informed the Municipality that it has been approved for a loan in 

amount not to exceed $1,100,000 (the "Loan") in order to finance the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the governing body of the Municipality hereby finds and determines that it is 

necessary and desirable to accept the Loan and to enter into a loan agreement and certain other 
documents relating thereto, and to take certain actions required in order to implement the Loan 
Agreement. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS: 
 

Section 1. Authorization of Loan Agreement. The Municipality is hereby authorized to 
accept the Loan and to enter into a certain Loan Agreement, with an effective date of February 20, 
2023, with the State of Kansas acting by and through the Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment (the "Loan Agreement") to finance the Project Costs (as defined in the Loan 
Agreement). The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the Loan Agreement in 
substantially the form presented to the governing body this date, with such changes or modifications 
thereto as may be approved by the Mayor and the Municipality's legal counsel, the Mayor's 
execution of the Loan Agreement being conclusive evidence of such approval. 



TWG REF: 1011252 
Authorizing Ordinance 

 
Section 2. Establishment of Dedicated Source of Revenue for Repayment of Loan. 

Pursuant to the Loan Act, the Municipality hereby establishes a dedicated source of revenue 
for repayment of the Loan. In accordance therewith, the Municipality shall impose and collect 
such rates, fees and charges for the use and services furnished by or through the System, 
including all improvements and additions thereto hereafter constructed or acquired by the 
Municipality as will provide System Revenues (as defined in the Loan Agreement) sufficient 
to (a) pay the cost of the operation and maintenance of the System, (b) pay the principal of and 
interest on the Loan as and when the same become due, (c) pay all other amounts due at any 
time under the Loan Agreement, and (d) pay the principal of and interest on Additional 
Revenue Obligations (as defined in the Loan Agreement) as and when the same become due; 
provided, however, the pledge of the System Revenues contained herein and in the Loan 
Agreement (i) shall be subject to reasonable expenses of operation and maintenance of the 
System, and (ii) shall be junior and subordinate in all respects to the pledge of System 
Revenues to any Additional Revenue Obligations. In the event that the System Revenues are 
insufficient to meet the obligations under the Loan and the Loan Agreement, the Municipality 
shall levy ad valorem taxes without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible 
property, real or personal, within the territorial limits of the Municipality to produce the 
amounts necessary for the prompt payment of the obligations under the Loan and Loan 
Agreement. In accordance with the Loan Act, the obligations under the Loan and the Loan 
Agreement shall not be included within any limitation on the bonded indebtedness of the 
Municipality. 

 
Section 3. Further Authority. The Mayor, Clerk and other City officials and legal 

counsel are hereby further authorized and directed to execute any and all documents and take 
such actions as they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the 
purposes of the Ordinance, and to make alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing 
agreements, statements, instruments and other documents herein approved, authorized and 
confirmed which they may approve, and the execution or taking of such action shall be 
conclusive evidence of such necessity or advisability. 

 
Section 4. Governing Law. The Ordinance and the Loan Agreement shall be governed 

exclusively by and construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Kansas. 
 

Section 5. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 
after its passage by the governing body of the City and publication in the official City 
newspaper. 

 
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



TWG REF: 1011252 
Authorizing Ordinance  

PASSED AND APPROVED by the governing body of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas this 
21st day of March, 2023. 
 
        CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS 
 

[Seal]      
 
 
              
        Lou Thurston, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Danielle Bartel, City Clerk 
 

 
 



TWG REF: 1011252 
Authorizing Ordinance – Excerpt of Minutes 

 
EXCERPT OF MINUTES 

 
The Governing Body of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas met in regular session at the usual 

meeting place in the City of Hillsboro on March 21, 2023 at 6:30 p.m., with Mayor Lou Thurston 
presiding, and the following members of the governing body present:  

 
 

and the following members absent:  
 
 

Thereupon, there was presented to the governing body an Ordinance entitled: 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LOAN 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS AND 
THE STATE OF KANSAS, ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE KANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF OBTAINING A LOAN FROM THE KANSAS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY 
LOAN FUND FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING A PUBLIC WATER 
SUPPLY PROJECT; ESTABLISHING A DEDICATED SOURCE OF 
REVENUE FOR REPAYMENT OF SUCH LOAN; AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; 
AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE LOAN AGREEMENT. 

 
Thereupon, the Ordinance was considered and discussed, and upon the motion of 

_______________, seconded by _______________, the Ordinance was adopted by a majority vote 
of the governing body, it was given No. _____ and was directed to be signed by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk, and the City Clerk was directed to publish the Ordinance one time in the 
City’s official newspaper as required by law and as provided therein. 

 
 

****



TWG REF: 1011252 
Authorizing Ordinance – Excerpt of Minutes 

CITY CLERK’S 
CERTIFICATION OF EXCERPT OF MINUTES 

 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct Excerpt of Minutes of the 
March 21, 2023 meeting of the governing body of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas. 

 
 

[Seal]   
 

          
     Danielle Bartel, City Clerk 

 









































































































 
March 10, 2023 

 
Hon. Mayor Lou Thurston 
City of Hillsboro 
118 E. Grand Ave.  
PO Box 125 
Hillsboro, KS 67063 
 
RE:  Chlorine Dioxide Equipment Proposal - UPDATED 
 
Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council, 
 
D&F Services, LLC is pleased to offer the following proposal to supply equipment to 
demonstrate D&F’s chlorine dioxide generation technology to your Water Plant 
application. We think you will find D&F’s level of service, flexibility, and commitment 
unmatched by any other company.   
 
Proposal 
Responsibilities of D&F Services, LLC 
Manual Equipment 
To produce sufficient chlorine dioxide at the dosage rates needed, the following equipment 
will be used for a 2-chemical generation system. A manually controlled, GENESYS 
generator Model 30-2M, capable of producing up to 30 lb. /day chlorine dioxide is used.  
This two-chemical chlorine dioxide generator combines 25% sodium chlorite with chlorine 
gas to generate chlorine dioxide with 95% or higher efficiency. The system uses manual 
flow valves and flow indicators to supply chlorine dioxide to two application points.  D&F 
Services, LLC will provide equipment submittals, start-up support and training. This 
system will be used to control iron and manganese as well as any hydrogen sulfide bacteria 
concerns.  
 
The plant operates at 600 gpm flow rate operating 24 hours per day.  Typically, the chlorine 
dioxide is split fed between the raw water and pre filter basin.  The intention is to continue 
to split the chlorine dioxide feed to two locations using the one existing tap and installing 
a second tap. Plumbing from the generator to these two feed points will be provided by the 
city as directed by D&F Services, LLC.  Flowmeters will be used to monitor the chlorine 
dioxide feed to each of these two locations. 
 
The plant will need to provide a water source to the generator with a minimum of 5 GPM 
flow and 60 psi pressure.  A water booster pump will be required. The system will include 
a control box for the automatic water flush and alarms to plant’s SCADA (if desired).  The 
unit will be wall mounted and will not require a stand. The chlorite feed will be through a 
wand with check valve, foot valve and filter included. A dedicated chlorine vacuum 



regulator (plant provided) and gas cylinder will be used to educt chlorine gas to the 
generator.  
 
A chlorine dioxide and chlorite testing unit will be required to monitor daily chlorine 
dioxide and daily chlorite.  Both of these measurements can be made on the same 
instrument.  Pricing will include the test equipment and supply of reagents needed to run 
the daily tests. 
 
Services 
D&F Services, LLC will provide periodic on-site technical services for the installation, 
start-up, and optimization of the application. Services consist of application expertise and 
assistance to improve the program performance.  Not only is the chlorine dioxide 
application reviewed, but also the treatment process, as performance may vary depending 
upon the water quality conditions, seasonality and treatment chemicals being used.  A site 
visit has been performed and installation recommendations have been made to the plant.  
 
Generation efficiency tests and chemical feed charts will be provided during the service 
visit. D&F Services, LLC will also provide chlorine dioxide safety training for the Water 
Plant staff, if requested, and provide emergency technical or mechanical response within 
24-48 hours of notification. 
 
Price  
Manual Equipment  
 
Equipment:                   $58,750.00 purchase price for GENESYS Model 30-2M generation 

equipment with a control box, booster pump, pressure regulator, 
flow switch, discharge flowmeters, injection quills, chemical drum 
containment, 16 each 55-gallon drums of 25% Sodium Chlorite 
solution, and chlorine dioxide and chlorite daily test equipment and 
reagents. 

 
                                 
Timing 
D&F Services, LLC can deliver the chemical, equipment & services typically within 4-6 
weeks (if not sooner) after receipt of purchase order to proceed.  
 
D&F Services, LLC is committed to providing the highest standard of chemical quality 
and technical services in the industry.  If the above proposal does not meet your application 
requirement, we would appreciate the opportunity to discuss alternatives with you.   
 
Thank you again for this opportunity to allow D&F to assist you in evaluating your chlorine 
dioxide needs and if you have any questions or need additional information, please contact 
me at 913-991-8883 or Ben Fox at 913-991-8881.   
          



All equipment is subject to terms and conditions of manufacturer’s warranty.  Conditions 
of offer and terms remain valid until April 30, 2023, and are subject to reconfirmation 
after that date. 
 
The attached terms and conditions are considered part of this proposal and are binding. 
D&F Services, LLC as the equipment supplier agrees to comply with the attached KDHE 
SRF Contract Provisions for Equipment Purchases. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
Sherri Downing 
General Manager 
D &F Services, LLC 
sdowning@dfserv.com 
913-991-8883 cell 
 
 
D & F Services, LLC will process your order when we receive acceptance of this proposal 
by signing below and returning this document with a purchase order to 5815 W. 148th Place 
Overland Park, KS 66223, by email at sdowning@dfserv.com. 
 
 
Accepted by: 
 
This ___ day of ______________2023 
 
By:  ___________________________ 
 
Title:  __________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___mailto:sdowning@dfserv.com___.YXAzOmNpdHlvZmhpbGxzYm9ybzphOm86ZDU5NjQzYjVkYTMyMmYxMzk1ZmRiMmQ1ZDVjZGYwZTQ6NjoxMzg2OjAwMzI4YTA3YmM4YWZmMDcxMzdlMjkzN2FjNGRjYTU4NGEyMjNhYmRhOWU4M2RjMjgxN2Y2MWIyNzcxZDE5NDc6cDpU
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___mailto:sdowning@dfserv.com___.YXAzOmNpdHlvZmhpbGxzYm9ybzphOm86ZDU5NjQzYjVkYTMyMmYxMzk1ZmRiMmQ1ZDVjZGYwZTQ6NjoxMzg2OjAwMzI4YTA3YmM4YWZmMDcxMzdlMjkzN2FjNGRjYTU4NGEyMjNhYmRhOWU4M2RjMjgxN2Y2MWIyNzcxZDE5NDc6cDpU


D&F Services (“D&F”) 
WARRANTY 

 
D&F Services covenants to the Customer/Purchaser that the chlorine dioxide generator and/or equipment purchased, 
leased or loaned to Customer / Purchaser is free from defects in material and workmanship, under normal use and service, 
for a period of twelve (12) months (the “Warranty Period”), such period to commence on the date of installation, provided, 
however, that in no event shall the Warranty Period extend longer than fifteen (15) months from the date of shipment of 
the generator and/or equipment to Customer/Purchaser. Customer/Purchaser shall promptly provide written notice and 
explanation of circumstances concerning any claim that the generator and/or equipment has proven defective in material 
or workmanship. Any part of the generator or any other equipment supplied by or installed by D&F that is proven unfit 
for use owing to faulty workmanship or material during the Warranty Period, may at the sole and absolute discretion of 
D&F, either be adjusted, replaced or repaired. This warranty shall not cover, nor shall D&F be responsible for, any defects 
or damages originating from ordinary wear and tear, for Customer’s failure to install and maintain the equipment per 
operating manual / installation manual instructions, or from the use of chemicals or replacement parts by 
Customer/Purchaser other than those supplied by D&F or otherwise recommended, specified and approved in writing by 
D&F, or any pump, PLC controller, power supply component or pH / ORP probe requiring replacement for any reason 
if such failure and replacement occurs outside the associated original equipment manufacturer’s standard Warranty Period 
or otherwise ninety days after the equipment installation and start-up date. Customer/Purchaser’s sole and exclusive 
remedy in the event of a defect is expressly limited to the correction of the defect by adjustment, repair or replacement. 
This warranty does not cover damage to any equipment or machinery resulting from any cause outside the control of 
D&F such as negligent or improper operation by Customer/Purchaser or its agents, third party shipper’s damage, faulty 
ancillary systems (including, but not limited to electrical, plumbing and water), acts of God or war or operation of 
equipment or machinery outside operating manual recommended parameters. 
 
No representation or other affirmation of fact, including, but not limited to statements regarding capacity, suitability for 
use, or performance of the equipment, shall be or be deemed to be a warranty by D&F for any purpose, nor give rise to 
any liability or obligation of D&F whatsoever. 
 
Service Agreement Warranty: In the event that D&F provides periodic service or maintenance of the chlorine dioxide 
generator and/or equipment, pursuant to a written Service Agreement or otherwise, Customer/Purchaser agrees that 
D&F’s liability in the connection with the performance of said services including, but not limited to any alleged 
negligence of D&F, shall not exceed the amount paid by Customer/Purchaser for service and maintenance attributable to 
that particular unit of equipment as directly invoiced by D&F for the three (3) months immediately proceeding the 
occurrence giving rise to any claim by Customer/Purchaser. In no event will D&F be liable for any incidental or 
consequential damages, including without limitation, loss of use, loss of data, loss of profit, loss of money, damage to 
the equipment or any affiliated components, or liability to third parties, however caused. 
 
UNLESS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY STATED HEREIN OR IN A WRITTEN AGREEMENT BETWEEN D&F AND 
CUSTOMER/PURCHASER SIGNED BY D&F’S GENERAL MANAGER, THE WARRANTY SET FORTH HEREIN 
IS THEONLY WARRANTY OR GUARANTEE MADE BY D&F AND D&F DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES,EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS, 
SUITABILITY, COMPATIBILITY OR PERFORMANCE. 
 
UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES, WHETHER DUE TO A BREACH OF ANY WARRANTY OR GUARANTEE 
HEREUNDER, OR ANY OTHER CAUSE, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR IN TORT, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE, 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE PERFORMANCE OR NON-PERFORMANCE OF THE EQUIPMENT 
OR D&F’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER ANY AGREEMENT WITH CUSTOMER, SHALL D&F BE LIABLE (1) FOR 
CONSEQUENTIAL OR INDIRECT LOSS OR DAMAGE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF 
PROFITS, LOSS OF PRODUCTION, PLANT DOWN-TIME, OR LIABILITIES TO CUSTOMERS OR OTHER 
THIRD PARTIES, OR (2) FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE ARISING OUT OF THE SOLE OR CONTRIBUTORY 
NEGLIGENCE OF THE PURCHASER, ITS EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS, OR ANY THIRD PARTY, OR (3) FOR 
ANY SPECIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES OFANY NATURE. 
                                                                 
 
 
Customer Acknowledgement: ____________________ Date: _____________________ 
Name: _______________________________________ 
Title:   _______________________________________ 
 
 



STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. Unless otherwise indicated in this Agreement, title, liability for and risk of loss to Product sold hereunder 
(the "Product") passes to Buyer upon loading for shipment at Seller’s producing location.  

 
2. Seller warrants only to Buyer that the Product delivered hereunder meets Seller's standard specifications 
for the Product as in effect on the date of shipment or such other specifications as may have been expressly 
agreed to herein.  EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN SECTION 6 HEREOF, SELLER MAKES NO 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR ARISING FROM ANY COURSE OF 
DEALING OR TRADE USAGE) REGARDING THE PRODUCT.  Buyer, having the expertise and knowledge 
in the intended use of the Product and any articles made there from, assumes all risk and liability for results 
obtained by the use of the Product, whether used alone or in combination with other materials. 

 
3. Failure to give notice of claim within ninety (90) days from date of delivery, or the date fixed for delivery (in 
case of non-delivery), shall constitute a waiver by Buyer of all claims in respect of the Product so delivered or 
not delivered, as the case may be.  No Product shall be returned to Seller without Seller's prior written 
permission, and then only in the manner prescribed by Seller.  No claim shall be allowed for Product that has 
been processed in any manner.  Claims include claims of any kind, whether or not, including without limitation 
those (a) for loss, damage, expense or injury, (b) with respect to the Product delivered or for non-delivery of 
the Product, or (c) based upon Seller's (i) breach of warranty, contract, statute, or regulation or (ii) negligence, 
strict liability or any other tort. 

 
4. BUYER'S EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY FOR ANY CLAIM SHALL BE A REFUND OF THE AMOUNT 
OF THE PURCHASE PRICE PAID FOR THE PRODUCT IN RESPECT OF WHICH DAMAGES ARE 
CLAIMED, AND IN NO EVENT SHALL SELLER'S LIABILITY FOR ANY CLAIM BE GREATER THAN THAT 
AMOUNT. 
 
5. NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF 
BUSINESS PROFITS, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION OR ANY OTHER LOSS).  WHETHER OR NOT CAUSED 
BY OR RESULTING FROM THE BREACH OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER WRONGFUL ACT 
OR OMISSION OF SUCH PARTY EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF 
SUCH DAMAGES. 
 
6. Seller warrants that the use or sale of the Product delivered hereunder will not infringe the claims of any 
validly issued United States patent covering the Product itself, but does not warrant against infringement due 
to: (a) the use of Products in combination with other products or materials or in the operation of any process, 
or (b) the compliance by Seller with any specifications provided to Seller by Buyer. 

 
7. No liability shall result from delay in performance or non-performance, directly or indirectly caused by 
circumstances beyond the control of the Party affected, including, but not limited to Act of God, fire, explosion, 
flood, war, act of or authorized by any government, accident, labor trouble or shortage, equipment failure, 
inability to obtain from its usual sources of supply fuel, power, material, equipment or transportation or 
commercial impracticability.  Quantities so affected may be eliminated from this Agreement without liability, 
but this Agreement shall remain otherwise unaffected.  Seller shall have no obligation to purchase supplies of 
the Products specified herein to enable Seller to perform this Agreement. 

 
8. It is understood and agreed between Buyer and Seller that if this Agreement covers Products that must be 
manufactured especially for Buyer and is suspended or terminated for any reason, Buyer will take delivery of 
and make payment for such Products as have been completed and such Products as are in process on the 
date notice of suspension or termination is received by Seller. If Buyer for any reason cannot accept delivery 
of such Products, Buyer will make payment therefore as though delivery has been made and Seller will store 
such Products for Buyer's account and at Buyer's expense. 

 
9. If for any reason, including without limitation Force Majeure, Seller is unable to supply the total demand for 
Products specified herein, Seller may distribute its available supply among any or all purchasers as well as 
business units, including affiliates and subsidiaries, of Seller on such basis as Seller may deem fair and 
practical without liability for any failure of performance that may result there from. Seller shall have no 
obligation to purchase Product to enable Seller to supply Buyer under this Agreement. 

 



10. At Buyer's request, Seller may, at its option, furnish such technical information as Seller has available with 
respect to the use of the Products covered by this Agreement.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing, all such 
technical assistance and information will be provided gratis, and Buyer assumes sole responsibility for results 
obtained in reliance thereon. 

 
11. Buyer acknowledges that it has received and is familiar with Seller's labeling and literature concerning 
such the Products and their properties.  Buyer will forward such information to Buyer's employees and any 
others, including Buyer's customers, who may handle process or sell such Products and advise such parties 
to familiarize themselves with such information. 

 
12. Buyer shall reimburse Seller for all taxes, licenses, or other charges, by whatever name, (other than taxes 
based upon Seller's income) which Seller may be required to pay to any Government (National, Foreign, State 
or Local) upon the sale, production, or transportation of the Products sold hereunder. 

 
13. In the event Buyer fails to fulfill Seller's terms of payment completely, or in case Seller shall have any 
doubt at any time as to Buyer's financial responsibility, Seller, without advance notice and at Seller's sole 
option, may decline to make further deliveries, except upon payment of all arrearages and receipt of cash in 
advance or delivery of security satisfactory to Seller. 

 
14. This Agreement is not assignable or transferable by Buyer, in whole or in part, except with the prior written 
consent of Seller. 
 
15. Failure by either Party, to require performance by the other Party or to claim a breach of any provision of 
this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any right arising under this Agreement, including the 
right to require subsequent performance or contest any subsequent breach. 
 
16. If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be found to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, 
notwithstanding this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and such term or provision shall be deemed 
stricken. Seller and Buyer shall promptly agree upon a substitute for any such term or provision. 
 
17. This Agreement is to be construed and the respective rights of Buyer and Seller are to be determined 
according to the laws of the State of Kansas, U.S.A., without regard to choice of law or conflicts principles of 
Kansas or any other jurisdiction, and the courts of Kansas shall have exclusive jurisdiction over any disputes 
or issues arising under this Agreement. The United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale 
of Goods shall not govern this Agreement or the performance thereof or any aspect of any dispute arising 
there from. 
 
18. This Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions with respect to the purchase and sale of the 
Products sold hereunder.  These terms and conditions supersede any of previous date and no modification 
thereof shall be binding on Seller unless separately contracted in writing and agreed to by a duly authorized 
representative of Seller.  No modification shall be effected by the acknowledgment or acceptance of purchase 
order forms stipulating different conditions.  Unless Buyer shall notify Seller in writing to the contrary as soon 
as practicable after receipt of this Agreement by Buyer, Buyer shall be deemed to have accepted the terms 
and conditions. 
 
 



















5815 W. 148th Place 
Overland Park, KS 66223 

913-991-8883 
sdowning@dfserv.com 

www.dfserv.com 

 

 
Page 1 of 1 
 

March 10, 2023 

 
D&F Services, LLC 
5815 W. 148th Street 
Overland Park, KS 66223 
 

Subject: Build America, Buy America Act Certification for Project (Hillsboro WTP Improvements 2023 KPWSLF No. 3166) 

 

I, Sherri Downing, certify that the following products and/or materials shipped/provided to the subject project are in full 

compliance with the Build America, Buy America Act (BABAA) requirement as mandated in the Infrastructure Investment 

and Jobs Act (IIJA) Pub. L. No. 117-58, §§ 70901-52. 

Item, Products and/or Materials: 

1. GENESYS chlorine dioxide generator Model 30-2M 

2. Pig Single Drum Containment 

3. 25% Sodium Chlorite Solution 

 

Such process took place at the following location:   

1. Equipment manufactured in La Cygne, KS.  

2. Containment manufactured in Tipton, PA. 

3.  Chemical manufactured in Wichita, KS.   

 

If any of the above compliance statements change while providing material to this project, we will immediately notify 

the prime contractor and the engineer. 

 

Sincerely, 

D&F Services, LLC 

 

Sherri L. Downing 
General Manager 

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___mailto:sdowning@dfserv.com___.YXAzOmNpdHlvZmhpbGxzYm9ybzphOm86ZDU5NjQzYjVkYTMyMmYxMzk1ZmRiMmQ1ZDVjZGYwZTQ6NjoxMzg2OjAwMzI4YTA3YmM4YWZmMDcxMzdlMjkzN2FjNGRjYTU4NGEyMjNhYmRhOWU4M2RjMjgxN2Y2MWIyNzcxZDE5NDc6cDpU
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___http://www.dfserv.com/___.YXAzOmNpdHlvZmhpbGxzYm9ybzphOm86ZDU5NjQzYjVkYTMyMmYxMzk1ZmRiMmQ1ZDVjZGYwZTQ6Njo0ZjgxOjg1MTNkNjg1OWUyZWFhMGM4OGM1MTYzNGY4MjY2Zjg3YTMwOTYyMjkzYzk3ZTg1ZDFiZjJjMTY5ZTQwMGUwZWE6cDpU


2021 2022 2023      Final     With Changes

Property $75,060 $89,666 $93,272

Inland Marine $7,745 $8,149 $9,483

General Liability $13,584 $13,113 $13,510

Business Auto $36,482 $36,542 $39,530

Law Enforcement $2,118 $3,054 $3,313

Crime

Linebacker $3,775 $4,273 $4,628

Cyber / Data Compromise $650 $1,635 $1,635

Umbrella

Airport Liability

Total Package $139,414 $156,432 $165,371

Work Comp    KMIT $34,894

Total $200,265
Dividend 
Net

Options:
Increase Property Deductibles 2500 / 5000 $5,000 Save $1,918
Increase Property Deductibles 2500 / 5000 5000 / 10,000 Save $10,929
Increase IM Deductibles $500 $1,000 Save $472
Add Crime none Increase $360
Raise Auto Limits $500,000 $1,000,000 Increase $4,054
Add Umbrella none $1,000,000 Increase $10,135
Add Work Comp Increase $32,997

.

Premium Review City of Hillsboro



Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 03/21/2023 

Re: Dog Confinement Language 

Background: A citizen brought the issue of dog confinement up after having issues with dogs while 
walking in town. Dogs can be aggressive and bark at a passerby and in some cases, the dog may not 
be obviously confined. The invisible or electronic fence or collar can be used to control dogs but might 
not be readily apparent to pedestrians. Those situations can cause a public safety issue if the dog 
comes at pedestrians even if dog is technically confined. Our current ordinance doesn’t address 
confinement using electronic means or provide much direction for confinement in general. According 
to our current ordinance states the following: 

2-208. Dog shall be confined. It shall be unlawful for the owner of a dog to permit said animal 
to leave the owner’s premises within the city, except that the dog be controlled by a leash or 
other physical confinement.    

The City Attorney developed a draft ordinance to expand on the current code language to provide 
more direction for the use of electronic fences or collars. The proposed electronic fence or collar 
regulations would require those using the method to have a setback of 10 feet from sidewalks and 
from neighboring property lines and not in front yards. Users of electronic fences or collars would 
need to post that electronic control is in use.  

In addition to language the ordinance requires leashes no longer than 10 feet in length when out with 
a owner. Voice control of the animal is also not considered confinement outside of the owners 
property. The proposed language also addresses animals being transported in the open bed of a 
truck.  

The ordinance is based on similar regulations in other communities. 

Financial Impact: NA 

Recommendation: A few issues would need to be considered before moving forward with the 
proposed ordinance. First, if there are existing electronic fences or collars, then would those be 
allowed to continue. Moving a buried line for electronic fence and retraining animals is an expense. 
Second, the 10-foot setback requirement from adjoining property lines may be difficult to enforce in 
adjoining back yards. Traditional fencing regulations allow for the fence to be placed on the property 
line. Third, the 10 foot leash requirement may present an issue for some owners as longer retractable 
leashes are common place.  

 



 

TWG REF:  1010839 
Code Ordinance (Downtown Parking) 

(Ordinance Summary published in The Hillsboro Star-Journal on 
______________, 2023 and the full text of the Ordinance made available at 
https://cityofhillsboro.net for a minimum of one (1) week from the date of 
publication) 

 
ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS AMENDING 
CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, SECTION 2-208 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
HILLSBORO, KANSAS. 

 
WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas (the “City”) has 

previously adopted Chapter 2, Article 2, Section 2-208 of the Code of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas 
(the “Code”), which contains provisions regarding confinement of dogs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City finds it necessary to amend Chapter 2, Article 2, Section 2-208 of the 

Code. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS: 

 
Section 1. Chapter 2, Article 2, Section 2-208 shall be amended and replaced and shall 

read as follows:  

2-208. Dogs shall be confined.  

All dogs must be confined to the residential property of the owner, keeper or harborer of said 
dog; provided, dogs may be taken off the residential property of the owner, keeper or harborer 
when: 

(a) on a leash, no longer than 10 feet in length and the leash and animal are under the 
control of a responsible person. Whether a person is responsible shall be determined by giving due 
consideration to the size and temperament of the animal; provided, all dogs determined to be 
vicious and registered as vicious animals under the provisions of this chapter shall be muzzled 
when off the residential property of the owner, keeper or harborer and shall be under the control 
of an adult; or 

(b) the dog is confined in a cage or within the enclosed interior of a motor vehicle; 
provided, it is a violation of this Section for a dog to be transported in the open bed of a truck 
unless restrained in a cage or on a leash that will prevent the animal from jumping or falling off 
the vehicle. 

For the purposes of this Section "confined to the residential property of the owner, keeper or 
harborer" shall mean, but not be limited to mean, confined either inside the residential structure of 
the owner, keeper or harborer, or if outside the residential structure of the owner, keeper or 
harborer, the dog shall be physically restrained on a chain or leash or within a suitable fence or 



TWG REF:  1010839 2 
Code Ordinance (Downtown Parking) 

other proper method of physical restraint from which it cannot escape or endanger public safety 
outside the suitable method of confinement; provided: 

(a) If the dog is in the physical presence of its owner, keeper, or harborer and on its 
owner's, keeper's or harborer's property and under the demonstrated direct and immediate voice 
control of its owner, keeper or harborer, it shall be considered confined to the residential property 
of its owner, keeper or harborer. It shall not be considered confined to the residential property of 
the owner, keeper or harborer, if the dog is off the property of the owner, keeper or harborer, 
whether it is under the demonstrated direct and immediate voice control of its owner, keeper or 
harborer or not. 

(b) Dogs may be confined to the premises of the residential property of their owner, 
keeper or harborer by an electronic fence or an electronic collar. An electronic fence or electronic 
collar is defined as a fence or a collar that controls the movement of a dog by emitting an electrical 
shock when the animal wearing the collar nears the boundary of the owner's, keeper's or harborer's 
property. The collar may be controlled manually by a person or automatically in a predetermined 
manner. Dogs confined to residential property of the owner, keeper, or harborer, by an electronic 
fence or an electronic collar, shall not be permitted to be nearer than 10 feet away from any public 
sidewalk or property line that is contiguous to neighboring property. In addition, dogs are 
prohibited from being confined by an electronic fence or an electronic collar in the front yards of 
an owner's, keeper's or harborer's property. No dog having been found a dangerous animal by the 
animal control division shall be confined by an electronic fence or an electronic collar. All owners, 
keepers or harborers of dogs who use an electronic fence shall clearly post their property to indicate 
to the public that a dog is confined to the property by an electronic fence or electronic collar. 
Electronic collars may not be used to control a dog when it is off its owner's, keeper's or harborer's 
property. 

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
adoption by the Governing Body of the City, approval by the Mayor and either (a) publication 
once in the official newspaper of the City, or (b) publication of a summary hereof certified as 
legally accurate and sufficient by the City Attorney.  
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



TWG REF:  1010839 3 
Code Ordinance (Downtown Parking) 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Hillsboro, 
Kansas this ____ day of ____________, 2023. 
 
      CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS 
 
 
 [seal] 
              
      Lou Thurston, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Danielle Bartel, City Clerk 



TWG REF:  1010839 
Code Ordinance (Downtown Parking) 

(Ordinance Summary published in The Hillsboro Star-Journal on 
______________, 2023 and the full text of the Ordinance made available at 
https://cityofhillsboro.net for a minimum of one (1) week from the date of 
publication) 

 
Ordinance No. ____ Summary 

 
On __________________, 2023, the City of Hillsboro, Kansas adopted Ordinance No. _______, 
adopting Chapter 2, Article 2, Section 2-208 of the Code of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas regarding 
confinement of dogs.  A complete copy of this ordinance may be obtained or viewed free of charge 
at the Office of the City Clerk at City Hall, 118 E. Grand, Hillsboro, Kansas 67063 or at 
www.cityofhillsboro.net. This summary is certified legally accurate and sufficient by the Hillsboro 
City Attorney pursuant to K.S.A. 12-3001 et seq. 
 
SUMMARY CERTIFIED: 
 
 
 
       
City Attorney 
 
Date:        
 
 

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https:/cityofhillsboro.net___.YXAzOmNpdHlvZmhpbGxzYm9ybzphOm86NTcyYzczMjhkOWNhYWI4M2ZjNWI1YjliNzFiYTYxMDM6Njo0NTJlOjgxZTc5MTA1NzJjM2U5MjEzOTI0MTY1YTkwMWYzY2M5YzBjYTRkMDYyNDZiMjcxMTBkOWM3ZDMwNWVmZmYyN2E6cDpU
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___http:/www.cityofhillsboro.net___.YXAzOmNpdHlvZmhpbGxzYm9ybzphOm86NTcyYzczMjhkOWNhYWI4M2ZjNWI1YjliNzFiYTYxMDM6Njo3MjliOmJhNGQ2NmFiMDRjOTc2NTQzYWVmZWQ0ODRmNmYwYjQyMjRkNjc3MzgzZWNiMzNhZmMwMTRjZjFiNmViNTM4NWM6cDpU


Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 3/21/2023 

Re: Support for HEAL Grant 126 N Main 

Background: The building at 126 N Main, known as the Olde Towne Building, was purchased earlier 
this year. The building’s owner, Eric Driggers, has hired Ranson Financial to write a HEAL grant 
(Historic Economic Asset Lifeline) through Kansas Department of Commerce. The grant is for up to 
$75,000 for the repair and renovation of a historic building in a downtown area. The building has been 
added to the Kansas Historic Resources Inventory. The data sheet for the Historic Resources 
Inventory is attached. 

Driggers is requesting the full $75,000 to assist with the renovation of the main floor. Funds will be 
used to rehab and seal the floors and other main floor renovations. The long-range plan is to have the 
main floor be a rentable event space(s), the upper floor be apartments or short-term housing, and the 
base will be used by a nonprofit church group. We have discussed other grant and incentive programs 
that exist for downtown and historic spaces. 

Part of the grant requires that the city sponsor the application. Sponsoring the application does not 
commit the city to any action aside from the sponsorship. A formal action to support the application 
must be recorded in the city’s minutes. 

Financial Impact: There is no financial impact to the city. If awarded funds and agreements go 
directly to the building owner.   

Recommendation: Staff recommends the city council officially sponsor the application to the HEAL 
grant program for rehabilitation of the property at 126 N Main.  



K a n s a s  H i s t o r i c  R e s o u r c e s  I n v e n t o r y

LOCATION:

C o u n t y : M a r i o n

A d d r e s s : 126 N MAIN ST 

A d d r e s s  R e m a r k s : previous  survey  l i s t s  as  124 126 N MAIN

City: Hil l sboro

Zip: 6 7 0 6 3

P a r c e l  I D :

L e g a l  D e s c r i p t i o n :

L e g a l  D e s c r i p t i o n  R e m a r k s : LOTS 12-13 BLK 2 ORIG.;  Parcel  ID: 057-138-34-0-30-08-004-00-0-01

L a t i t u d e ,  L o n g i t u d e  1 : 38 .35429  -97 .20457

L a t i t u d e ,  L o n g i t u d e  2 :

L a t i t u d e ,  L o n g i t u d e  3 :

L a t i t u d e ,  L o n g i t u d e  4 :

D a t u m : W G S 8 4

DESCRIPTION:

H i s t o r i c  N a m e : Commerc ia l  Bui ld ing

A l t e r n a t e  N a m e : Old Towne Bui lding

H i s t o r i c  F u n c t i o n : C o m m e r c e / T r a d e

S u b c a t e g o r y :

H i s t o r i c  F u n c t i o n  R e m a r k s :

P r e s e n t  F u n c t i o n : Vacan t /Not  in  Use

S u b c a t e g o r y :

P r e s e n t  F u n c t i o n  R e m a r k s : Sto re f ron t s  appea r  t o  be  vacan t

R e s i d e n t i a l / C o m m e r c i a l / R e l i g i o u s  S t y l e : V e r n a c u l a r

S e c o n d a r y  S t y l e : Q u e e n  A n n e

B a r n  T y p e :

B r i d g e  T y p e :

L a n d s c a p e  T y p e :

P h y s i c a l  D e s c r i p t i o n / R e m a r k s :

P l a n  F o r m : R e c t a n g l e

C o m m e r c i a l  B u i l d i n g  T y p e : Two-Par t  Commercia l  Block

R o o f  F o r m : F l a t  w i t h  P a r a p e t

S t o r i e s : 2

Pr in t ed :  02 /28 /2023

1 1 5 - 2 4 8 0 - 0 0 0 0 3  
C o m m e r c i a l  B u i l d i n g  
1 2 6  N  M A I N  S T  
H i l l s b o r o  

 



C o n d i t i o n : G o o d

P r i n c i p a l  M a t e r i a l : S t o n e

C o n d i t i o n  R e m a r k s :

A r c h i t e c t / D e s i g n e r / B u i l d e r : U n k n o w n

Y e a r  o f  C o n s t r u c t i o n : 1 8 8 7

C e r t a i n t y : D o c u m e n t e d

D a t e  N o t e s : d a t e  p r e s e n t  o n  c o r n i c e

G e n e r a l  R e m a r k s : Canopy/awning  spanning  f ron t  facade  added  s ince  o r ig ina l  su rvey .

A n c i l l a r y  S t r u c t u r e s : N o n e  

A n c i l l a r y  S t r u c t u r e  R e m a r k s :

REGISTER STATUS:

L i s t e d  i n  S t a t e  R e g i s t e r : N o

D a t e  o f  S t a t e  L i s t i n g :

L i s t e d  i n  N a t i o n a l  R e g i s t e r : N o

D a t e  o f  N a t i o n a l  L i s t i n g :

H i s t o r i c  D i s t r i c t :

D e m o l i s h e d :

D a t e  D e m o l i s h e d  ( i f  a p p l i c a b l e ) :

P o t e n t i a l l y  E l i g i b l e  f o r  N a t i o n a l  R e g i s t e r : Not  Asses sed  

R e g i s t e r  S t a t u s  R e m a r k s :

T h e m a t i c  N o m i n a t i o n  ( M P D F ) :

N a t i o n a l  H i s t o r i c  L a n d m a r k :      

SURVEY INFORMATION:

There  i s  no  survey  informat ion  for  th is  record .  
IMAGES & DOCUMENTS

126 N Main ,  Hi l l sboro .  1989
(Original  image in  color ,  addi t ional

images  avai lable  on f i le) .

126  N Main ,  Hi l l sboro .  06 /03/2010.
Commerc ia l  Bui ld ing .  126  N Main
Stree t .  West  Elevat ion .  Looking SE.

Photo by Will iam E.  Fischer ,  Jr . ,
1 1 / 1 1 / 2 0 1 1

 

126  N  Main ,  b rochu re ,
s u b m i t t e d  1 9 8 9 .

 

1 2 6  N  M a i n ,  n e w s p a p e r
c l ipp ing ,  submi t t ed  1989 .



Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 03/21/2023 

Re: Policy 99 Golf Course Memberships 

Background: Following up on Councilman McCarty’s request at the previous meeting, staff have 
developed a proposed municipal policy related to golf course memberships. The proposed policy 
officially recognizes some of the existing arrangements with golf memberships inherited from the Golf 
Association transition. The city would honor all those arrangements from the Golf Association for 
2023. Future arrangements would be left up to the Superintendent and City Administrator. 

The proposed discount of 50% would apply to all city employees and firefighters. The deadline for 
membership payment is March 15 before a late fee is assessed. Since it is past that date, the sign up 
for employees would be extended to June 1. Any employee that signed up before the policy was put 
in place would receive a rebate. There is currently one such member. The discount as written would 
only apply to membership and not cart fees, trail fees, or other fees that the course might charge.  

Financial Impact: The overall impact depends on the number of users and categories of 
membership. The benefit does not cost the city anything aside from foregoing the collection of 50% of 
the annual membership fee. As it stands, the policy would impact one employee. There are two 
classes of membership, Family at $495 annually and Single at $375 annually. The discount would be 
$247.50 for a Family or $187.50 for a Single. The attached fee schedule also shows the other fees the 
course charges. All other fees would not be discounted. 

Recommendation: The proposed benefit is relatively inexpensive for the city. The city foregoes 50% 
of the annual membership fee which is minimal. In the case of new members it adds to the 
membership total and 50% of the revenue comes back to the course. In all likelihood, a member will 
likely incur other fees that would not be discounted. It also adds the benefits package the city can 
provide to employees, albeit in a minimal way.  

 



 

CITY OF HILLSBORO 

MUNICIPAL POLICY STATEMENT 

 

Policy No. 99 

Subject: Hillsboro Municipal Golf Course Memberships 

Effective Date:  

In January 2023, the City of Hillsboro assumed daily management of the Hillsboro Municipal Golf Course 
from the Hillsboro Golf Association (HGA). As part of that transition, the city has assumed management of 
the membership. The HGA has standing agreements to allow for free or discounted annual memberships 
for certain individuals. Those individuals include the employees serving the golf course, a volunteer that 
provides ball clean-up services at the driving range and a lifetime membership for the retired golf course 
superintendent. In recognition of those pre-existing arrangements, the city will honor those arrangements 
for 2023. All future arrangements will be at the discretion of the Golf Superintendent and City 
Administrator. 

To encourage membership and employee wellness, the city will provide any regular full-time and part-time 
employee of the city or volunteer on the Hillsboro Fire Department a 50% reduction in annual membership 
fee at the golf course. The reduction shall apply only to the membership fee chosen by the employee. 
Discounts do not apply to cart storage fees, trail fees, handicap fees, cart rental or daily greens fees for 
guests. 

To receive the discounted rate, employees must submit payment by the annual due date. For 2023, the 
revised due date for city employees shall be June 1, 2023. For all future years, the date shall be the same as 
other golf course members. Any employee or firefighter that paid for membership in 2023 before the 
adoption of this policy shall be refunded 50% of the membership fee.   

The governing body of the City of Hillsboro agreed by motion at the January 17, 2023, regular meeting to 
approve this policy statement. 

 

Approved: _________________________________________  ____________________ 

Lou Thurston, Mayor Date 



Golfer’s Name(s), Address, Phone & Email: 

________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________ 

 

 

2023 Annual Pass and Fee Options 

Family Annual Pass 
Includes Spouse, and IRS Dependents in household 

$495.00  
or $136.00/month* 

Single Annual Pass $375.00  
or $96.00/month* 

Student Annual Pass (Ages 6-24) $220.00  
or $60.00/month* 

Cart Storage $195.00  
or $54.00/month* 

Trail Fee 
Trail Fee applies only to carts not stored at the course. Cart owners may pay a 
fee of $5.00 per round instead of the annual fee. 

$95.00 
or $26.00/month* 

GHIN Handicap Scoring 
Men’s, Women’s, and Junior 18-Hole Handicap through USGA $30.00 

 
*The city can provide a payment plan divided into four payments to be paid in full by May. Payment plans will include 
a 10% charge for payments and requires a payment agreement with the city.  
 
All fees are due by March 15, 2023. Annual passes are good from January 1 – December 31. Fees not paid 
by the due date will require golfers to pay daily greens fees to play.  
 
 

2023 Annual Greens Annual Pass and Fee Registration 
 

 Family Annual Pass $495.00  Single Annual Pass $375.00 
 Student Annual Pass $220.00  Cart Storage $195.00 
 Trail Fee $95.00  GHIN Handicap Scoring $30.00 

 
TOTAL $  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All payments are due to the City of Hillsboro, 118 E Grand Avenue. Payments can be made by submitting 
this form with cash, check or credit card at City Hall. Payments can also be made online at 
https://hillsboroks.recdesk.com 



City Administrator’s Report 
March 21, 2023 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Sump Pump Amnesty Program: We are finishing a draft of the sump pump amnesty program for council 
to review at the April 4th meeting. The Water/Sewer Department has met with Tom Richards and Dick 
Carr about potentially doing repair work to correct connections. They have estimated it would cost 
approximately $400 per connection, potentially more depending on the situation. Richards and Carr 
were also willing to do the work should we select them. Working with a conservative estimate that up to 
10% of the homes in the system could be illegally connected, an approximate cost could be around 
$40,000.  

Sales Tax: Sales tax revenue for 2023 is off to a great start. Collections for February were $99,840.03 
and increase of 36% from February 2022. Overall. collections are 15% above the same period for 2022. 
From a historical perspective 2022 was the best year on record for sales tax, totaling $1,028,095.88 in 
2022.  

KPP Bill: Attached is the KPP Bill for February service, a total of $132,281.26. The electric surcharge from 
KPP will likely continue to be charged through the middle of 2023. Despite the surcharge, overall rates 
from KPP are down thanks to expiring energy purchase contracts. The rate change approved by Council 
took effect for the March bills.  

Health Insurance Savings Report: Attached is the February insurance savings report from FCMI. The 
city’s health insurance plan has saved $50,827.85 of the 8 months of the plan compared to a fully- 
insured equivalent plan. The current claims reserve balance is $119,247.74. The plan year renews on July 
1st, and we have already begun looking at changes needed for plan design. We have had some feedback 
from employees regarding the benefit for x-rays and imaging. We are considering changing the plan 
structure to enhance that benefit for employees.  

Equipment Lease-Purchase: We are currently shopping the proposed lease purchase agreement for the 
equipment that we approved purchasing at the first March meeting. We have received confirmation 
from Central National Bank and Marion State Bank that they intend to submit bids. We have also sent 
the proposed agreement to Emprise and Vintage Bank.  

New AP/Payroll Clerk: We are please to announce that we have hired Krista Richert to join our team as 
the AP/Payroll Clerk. Krista has lots of experience working with accounts payable and financials as well 
as in office management. Krista will start the last week of March. With that position filled we are down 
to two open positions, one in streets and one in water/sewer.  



CITY OF HILLSBORO
SUMMARY OF SALES TAX RECEIVED

2022 AND 2023

Date Rec Collected In UT Pool ST Pool UT City ST City UT County ST County Total YTD Bal
1/18/2022 December 6,645.05$       21,192.84$    6,645.05$    21,192.84$    5,831.66$       14,045.39$    75,552.83$        75,552.83$        
2/22/2022 January 4,004.17$       21,805.18$    4,004.18$    21,805.18$    5,476.64$       16,088.48$    73,183.83$        148,736.66$      
3/30/2022 February 4,297.67$       21,717.05$    4,297.68$    21,717.05$    5,449.98$       14,560.95$    72,040.38$        220,777.04$      
4/29/2022 March 4,802.68$       21,901.36$    4,802.68$    21,901.36$    4,151.12$       13,180.56$    70,739.76$        291,516.80$      
5/25/2022 April 5,384.11$       42,865.43$    5,384.12$    42,865.44$    4,876.19$       22,025.62$    123,400.91$      414,917.71$      
6/22/2022 May 5,143.84$       26,674.70$    5,143.85$    26,674.70$    5,030.81$       16,788.49$    85,456.39$        500,374.10$      
7/22/2022 June 3,126.18$       25,428.52$    3,126.18$    25,428.52$    4,407.78$       16,595.43$    78,112.60$        578,486.70$      
8/29/2022 July 3,824.08$       29,607.00$    3,824.08$    29,607.00$    4,784.04$       18,751.56$    90,397.76$        668,884.46$      
9/29/2022 August 5,543.57$       32,706.30$    5,543.57$    32,706.30$    7,727.51$       21,184.92$    105,412.17$      774,296.63$      

10/26/2022 September 1,484.06$       25,703.31$    1,484.06$    25,703.32$    2,285.86$       15,820.11$    72,480.72$        846,777.35$      
11/23/2022 October 3,567.58$       29,960.64$    3,567.59$    29,960.65$    5,155.94$       19,793.09$    92,005.49$        938,782.84$      
12/30/2022 November 3,796.12$       28,896.03$    3,796.12$    28,896.03$    4,939.29$       18,989.45$    89,313.04$        1,028,095.88$   

Total Received 51,619.11$    328,458.36$  51,619.16$  328,458.39$  60,116.82$    207,824.05$  1,028,095.88$   

Date Rec Collected In UT Pool ST Pool UT City ST City UT County ST County Total YTD Bal
1/31/2023 December 4,359.08$       20,404.92$    4,359.08$    20,404.93$    6,381.08$       15,584.79$    71,493.88$        71,493.88$        
2/23/2023 January 4,443.55$       28,343.72$    4,443.55$    28,343.72$    13,932.82$    20,332.67$    99,840.03$        171,333.91$      

February 171,333.91$      
March 171,333.91$      
April 171,333.91$      
May 171,333.91$      
June 171,333.91$      
July 171,333.91$      
August 171,333.91$      
September 171,333.91$      
October 171,333.91$      
November 171,333.91$      
Total Received 8,802.63$       48,748.64$    8,802.63$    48,748.65$    20,313.90$    35,917.46$    171,333.91$      



PLEASE NOTE NEW 
REMITTANCE ADDRESS

PLEASE REMIT TO:
KANSAS POWER POOL

DEPT 3423
P.O. BOX 123423

DALLAS, TX 75312-3423
City of

P.O. Box 125 Feb-23 3/13/2023
3/23/2023

Peak kW Date Hour Ending

3,527 2/16/2023 12:00

kW/kWh Rate $ Amount

3,527 kW $8.41 $29,662.07 $0.01699
3,527 kW $1.65 $5,819.55 $0.00333

RICE Upgrade 3,527 kW $0.21 $740.67 $0.00042
3,527 kW

0 kW
3,527 kW $5.12 $18,058.24 $0.01034

1,683,100 kWh
62,915 kWh

0 kWh
0 kWh
0 kWh

1,746,015 kWh $0.03168 $55,313.76 $0.03168

1,746,015 kWh $0.00153000 $2,671.40 $0.00153
1,746,015 kWh $0.01000000 $17,460.15 $0.01000

$129,725.84 $0.07430
$0.00
$0.00

$634.38
$1,921.04

 
$0.03321000

$132,281.26

  
  

 

Service Month: Billing Date:  
Account # 380 Due Date:

 

Ave Cost per 
kWh

Demand Charges
Transmission

Administrative

Energy Cost Adjustment

TOTAL DEMAND AND ENERGY CHARGE

Delivered Capacity
Capacity Adjustment

Capacity Demand

Energy Charges
Metered Energy

Losses

FEB 2021 Storm Surcharge

 
 
 

Hillsboro
Attn: City Clerk

Hillsboro, KS  67063

Past Due / (Credit)
Correction for Prior Month Billing
Distribution Facility Charge
AMI Project Repay

System average cost of energy in $/kWh

TOTAL BILLING THIS PERIOD

Generation
Unsch Generation

Energy Adjustment
Energy 



Employee Tier
# of 

Employees
Illustrative 

Rates

Total 
Illustrative 

Rates

Umbrella 
Policy Rates

Total 
Umbrella 

Policy Rates

TPA Admin 
Fee

Monthly 
Medical 

Claims Paid

Monthly 
Rx Claims 

Paid

Risk 
Management 

Fee

Gross 
Savings of 
Freedom 
Choice

Net Savings 
of Freedom 
Choice

Single 10 641.78$       6,417.80$     362.54$       3,625.40$     520.00$      
Employee/Spouse 6 1,283.55$   7,701.30$     700.37$       4,202.22$     312.00$      
Employee/Child 2 1,123.11$   2,246.22$     664.04$       1,328.08$     104.00$      
Family 4 1,604.44$   6,417.76$     1,001.86$   4,007.44$     208.00$      

22 22,783.08$   13,163.14$   1,144.00$   1,344.92$   621.54$   650.95$        6,509.48$   5,858.53$  

Plan Year

City of Hillsboro
911280

Monthly Claims Analysis for FreedomChoice
February, 2023

FreedomChoice
Group Health Plan

Freedom  Claims Management, Inc
P.O. Box 1365

Great Bend, KS  67530
620‐792‐9151 ‐ Telephone

620‐792‐3389 ‐ Fax



# of 
Employees

Total 
Illustrative 

Rates

Total Umbrella 
Policy Rates

TPA Admin 
Fee

Monthly Medical 
Claims Paid

Monthly Rx 
Claims Paid

Risk 
Management 

Fee*

Gross Savings 
of Freedom 
Choice

Net Savings of 
Freedom 
Choice

July‐22 24 25,029.30$     14,491.22$     1,248.00$     865.54$             1,053.62$      737.09$         7,370.92$      6,633.83$      
August‐22 25 25,671.08$     14,853.76$     1,300.00$     1,088.72$          2,050.55$      637.81$         6,378.05$      5,740.25$      
September‐22 26 26,312.86$     15,216.30$     1,352.00$     1,423.44$          2,973.27$      534.79$         5,347.85$      4,813.07$      
October‐22 26 26,312.86$     15,216.30$     1,352.00$     2,716.39$          1,420.80$      560.74$         5,607.37$      5,046.63$      
November‐22 25 25,671.08$     14,853.76$     1,300.00$     657.09$             806.27$          805.40$         8,053.96$      7,248.56$      
December‐22 24 25,029.30$     14,491.22$     1,248.00$     379.46$             579.37$          833.13$         8,331.25$      7,498.12$      
January‐23 23 23,906.19$     13,827.18$     1,196.00$     ‐$                    6.50$              887.65$         8,876.51$      7,988.86$      
February‐23 22 22,783.08$     13,163.14$     1,144.00$     1,344.92$          621.54$          650.95$         6,509.48$      5,858.53$      
March‐23 0 ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                
April‐23 0 ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                
May‐23 0 ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                
June‐23 0 ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$               ‐$                    ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                

200,715.75$   116,112.88$   10,140.00$   8,475.56$          9,511.92$      5,647.54$      56,475.39$    50,827.85$    

Group Health Plan

City of Hillsboro
911280

Monthly Claims Analysis for Freedom Choice
July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023

FreedomChoice

*Negative amounts in this column are not billed as such. Negative amounts will be billed as $0 Risk Management Fee.

Freedom  Claims Management, Inc
P.O. Box 1365 

Great Bend, KS  67530
620‐792‐9151 ‐ Telephone

620‐792‐3389 ‐ Fax


	Binder2.pdf
	Agenda 03-21-23 Packet.pdf
	2023.03.21 Vouchers for Approval $497,922.36 SCANNED
	2023.03.02 Special Council Minutes for Approval
	2023.03.07 Council Minutes for Approval
	2023.03.15 Special Council Minutes for Approval
	Water Chemicals
	Vondys Liquor - Liquor License Application
	Vondys Liquor - Retailers License

	3.21.23 KDHE EBH Agreements Packet
	Ordinance 1365
	KDHE loan agreement

	EBH contract Packet
	EBH contract.pdf
	DF Proposal.pdf
	Hillsboro  Chlorine Dioxide Proposal 031023 Updated Final
	BABAA Certification Letter 031023  D&F Services, LLC


	2023 City of Hillsboro Renewal Premium.pdf
	3.21.23 Support of HEAL Grant for 126 N Main
	3.21.23 Support of HEAL Grant for 126 N Main.pdf
	Kansas Historic Resources Inventory.pdf

	SR Dog Confinement Language
	Dog Confinement Language
	DOCS-#1010839-v1-Code_Ordinance_(Dog_Confinement)__Hillsboro

	Golf Memberships SR Packet
	Golf Memberships SR
	3.21.23-Policy_99_Golf_Membership
	2023_annual_pass_and_fee_options

	Administrators Report 03.21.23 Packet
	Administrators Report 03.21.23.pdf
	Sales Tax Feb 2023
	Sales Tax

	Hillsboro KPP February billing 2023 10
	FEB2023-CITY OF HILLSBORO (002)






